

---

---

**THE VILLAGE OF ROSELLE**  
COOK AND DUPAGE COUNTIES, ILLINOIS

---

---

**ORDINANCE**  
NUMBER 2022-4246

---

---

**AN ORDINANCE AMENDING  
CHAPTER 18 ARTICLE VI  
OF THE CODE OF ORDINANCES OF  
THE VILLAGE OF ROSELLE, ILLINOIS  
(MUNICIPAL PARKING LOTS)**

---

---

DAVID PILESKEI, Mayor  
AMANDA HAUSMAN, Village Clerk

BRUCE BERKSHIRE  
WAYNE D. DOMKE  
CHERYL LENISA  
TOM DELLA PENNA  
TOM PIORKOWSKI  
LEE TREJO

Village Board

---

---

Published in pamphlet form by authority of the  
Mayor and the Board of Trustees of the Village of Roselle  
on this the 12th day of December, 2022

---

---

**ORDINANCE NO. 2022-4246**

**AN ORDINANCE AMENDING  
CHAPTER 18 ARTICLE VI  
OF THE CODE OF ORDINANCES OF  
THE VILLAGE OF ROSELLE, ILLINOIS  
(MUNICIPAL PARKING LOTS)**

**WHEREAS**, the Village of Roselle (hereinafter referred to as the “Village”) is an Illinois Municipal Corporation organized pursuant to the laws of the State of Illinois;

**WHEREAS**, the Village has in full force and effect a codified set of ordinances which are of a general and permanent nature, which said codified set is known and designated as the Village Code of the Village of Roselle, as amended;

**WHEREAS**, the Village has the authority to adopt ordinances and to promulgate rules and regulations that pertain to its government and affairs that protect the health, safety and welfare of its residents;

**WHEREAS**, staff routinely reviews the Village Code to ensure that Village Code is properly updated to reflect not only changes in law and statute but technology;

**WHEREAS**, amendments to Village Code are required to provide for increases in pricing to correspond with the adopted FY 2023 budget;

**WHEREAS**, additional amendments to Village Code are necessary to correspond with the enforcement of municipal parking lots;

**WHEREAS**, the Corporate Authorities of the Village of Roselle are of the opinion that it is in the best interests of the safety, health and welfare of the residents to amend the village’s code of ordinances as referenced herein.

**NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED**, in open meeting assembled, by the Mayor and Board of Trustees of the Village of Roselle, Cook and DuPage Counties, Illinois as follows:

**Section One - Recitals**

The Board of Trustees hereby find that all of the recitals hereinbefore stated as contained in the preamble to this ordinance are full, true and correct and do hereby, by reference, incorporate and make them part of this ordinance as legislative findings.

**Section Two – Amendment Village Code of Ordinances Chapter 18 Article VI**

The following sections of Chapter 18 Article VI shall be amended as follows (additions appearing underlined and any deleted language appearing with a ~~strike-through~~ line):

Sec. 18-90. Supervision; enumeration

The municipal parking lots now or hereafter acquired or established by the village shall be

under the supervision of the chief of police.

Such parking lots shall be numbered as follows:

- (1) *Lot No. 1:* North commuter lot.
- (2) *Lot No. 2:* South commuter lot.
- (3) *Lot No. 3:* Maple commuter lot.
- (4) ~~Reserved.~~ Lot No. 4: Bokelman lot.
- (5) ~~Lot No. 5: North commuter daily fee lot.~~

#### Sec. 18-91.1. Parking spaces; use.

It shall be unlawful for any person to cause, allow, permit, or suffer any vehicle registered in the name of, or operated by, such person or any other person, to be parked in a space provided in a municipal parking lot without paying the established fee where the parking in an area is restricted to those who possess and display a valid individually coded parking card permit, or who pay a proper coin or token the proper daily fee; provided, however, that it shall not constitute a violation of this paragraph for any person to cause, allow, permit, or suffer any vehicle to be parked in a municipal parking lot in accordance with section 18-91.65 or section 18-91.87. It shall be unlawful to park longer than that time covered by the use of the parking card permit or the insertion payment of the proper coin or token daily fee.

#### Sec. 18-91.2. Display of individually coded parking card

~~It shall be unlawful for any person to cause, allow, permit, or suffer any vehicle registered in the name of, or operated by, such person or any other person, to be parked in a space provided in a municipal parking lot without displaying a valid, individually coded parking card which shall be visible from the exterior of the vehicle; provided, however, that it shall not constitute a violation of this paragraph for any person to cause, allow, permit, or suffer any vehicle to be parked in a municipal parking lot in accordance with section 18-91.6 or section 18-91.8.~~

#### Sec. 18-91.32. Towing of vehicles

Any vehicle parked in a municipal parking lot without ~~displaying~~ possessing a valid, individually coded parking card permit, or ~~properly depositing a proper coin or token in the meter or device controlling the parking place used~~ payment of the proper daily fee, or parking in an area where parking is not permitted, and is so posted by official signs, shall be considered illegally parked, and the police officers of the village are authorized and directed to remove and tow away by a commercial towing service, any such illegally parked vehicle.

The fact that an automobile or motor vehicle which is illegally operated or parked is registered with the secretary of state of Illinois in the name of said alleged violator; or, in the alternative, in the event that a vehicle sticker issued by a municipality has been issued in the name of and to said alleged violator, shall be considered prima facie proof that said alleged violator was in control of or was the operator of the automobile or motor vehicle at the time of such alleged violation.

Vehicles so towed away for illegal parking shall be stored in a safe place and restored to the owner or operator of such vehicle upon payment of the towing fee within twenty-four (24) hours after the time such vehicle was removed, plus an additional fee for each twenty-four (24) hours or fraction thereof as set by the towing operator.

#### Sec. 18-91.43. Maple Avenue Lot: Residents only

All permit parking spaces in the Maple Avenue Lot shall be reserved for Roselle residents only. Proof of residency shall be evidenced by display of a valid vehicle sticker issued by the village. Violations of this restriction shall be subject to the penalty provisions of section 18-954 of the Code of Ordinances of the village.

Sec. 18-91.54. Free overnight parking.

The following municipal parking lots are hereby designated as free overnight parking lots:

- (1) Lot No. 1: North commuter lot.
- (2) Lot No. 2: South commuter lot.
- (3) ~~Lot No. 5: North commuter daily fee lot.~~

Sec. 18-91.65. Periods of free overnight parking.

~~Persons may park any vehicle in the free overnight municipal parking lots designated in section 18-91.5, without payment of a daily fee or the possession and display of a valid individually coded parking card, during the following periods: between 4:00 p.m., local time, of any day and 5:00 a.m. on the following day and at any time on Saturday, Sunday or on a legal holiday.~~

Persons may park any vehicle in the free overnight municipal parking lots designated in section 18-91.4, without payment of a daily fee or the possession of a valid parking permit, during the following periods: between 4:00 p.m., local time, of any day and 5:00 a.m. on the following day and at any time on Saturday, Sunday or on Independence Day, Memorial Day, Labor Day, Christmas Day, and New Year's Day.

Sec. 18-91.76. Free night and weekend parking

The following municipal parking lots are hereby designated as free night and weekend parking lots:

- (1) Lot No. 3: Maple commuter lot.

Sec. 18-91.87. Periods of free night and weekend parking

Persons may park any vehicle in the free of the night and weekend municipal parking lots designated in section 18-91.7, without payment of a daily fee or the possession and display of a valid individually coded parking card, during the following periods: between 4:00 p.m., local time, of any day and 2:00 a.m. on the following day; and at any time on Saturday, Sunday, or on Independence Day, Memorial Day, Labor Day, Christmas Day, and New Year's Day a legal holiday.

Sec. 18-91.8. Free daily parking

The following municipal parking lots are hereby designated as free daily parking lots:

- (1) Lot No. 4: Bokelman lot.

Sec. 18-91.9. Periods of free daily parking.

Persons may park any vehicle in the free daily municipal parking lots designated in section 18-91.8, without payment or the possession of a valid parking permit during the following periods: between 5:00 a.m. and 4:00 p.m., local time.

Sec. 18-93. Hours

~~It shall be unlawful to park any car in any commuter parking lot on any day from 2:00 a.m. to 5:00 a.m.; provided, however, that it shall not constitute a violation of this paragraph for any person to cause, allow, permit, or suffer any vehicle to be parked in a municipal parking lot in accordance with section 18-91.6. Special permission to allow for parking in commuter parking lots not designated in section 18-91.5 during these hours may be given by the police department, upon telephone request, at the discretion of the police department.~~

Sec. 18-93. Fees

Fees for parking in any municipal [commuter] parking lot shall be such as are provided for from time to time by the president and board of trustees. It shall be unlawful to park in any municipal commuter parking lot where a fee is provided by ordinance without paying such fee. In any municipal commuter parking lot where the parking in an area is restricted to those who possess ~~an individually-coded~~ a valid parking card permit, or who pay ~~at the proper coin or token daily fee~~, it shall be unlawful to park any vehicle without the use of a ~~properly-coded~~ valid parking card permit or ~~depositing proper coin or token in the meter or device controlling either the entrance to the parking lot or the parking place used~~ payment of the proper daily fee, or to park for a longer period than that covered by the use of the parking card permit or ~~the insertion of the proper coin or token~~ payment of the daily fee.

Sec. 18-943.1. Fee fixed for parking in municipal lots

- (a) The parking fee for designated daily parking areas of the commuter parking lots shall be one dollar and fifty cents (\$1.50) for each day when paying by cash and one dollar and eighty cents (\$1.80) for each day when paying by debit or credit card.
- (b) ~~Parking permit fees in designated areas of the commuter lots adjacent to the Roselle Train Station~~ the parking lots known as the North lot and South lot Lot No. 1, Lot No. 2, and Lot No. 4 shall be as follows:

Type of Permit	Fee
Monthly	<del>\$306.00</del>
Quarterly	<del>\$890.00</del>
Annual	<del>\$300.00</del>

~~Parking permit fees for Roselle residents only in the designated areas of the parking lot know as the Maple lot~~ Lot No. 3 shall be as follows:

Type of Permit	Fee
Monthly	\$20.00

Quarterly	\$503.00
Annual	\$160.00

#### Sec. 18-945. Penalty

All persons who shall violate any of the provisions of this article shall upon conviction be punished by a fine as outlined in in Chapter 1, Section 1-8.1 of the Code of Ordinances of the village. ~~this section. A separate offense shall be deemed committed on each day upon which a violation occurs or continues.~~

~~Any person accused of a violation of this article may settle and compromise the claim against him or her by paying to the village the sum as outlined in this section within ten (10) calendar days of the time such alleged violation was committed. This provision shall not apply to the violation of parking in a handicapped space without the proper handicapped card or license plate.~~

Violation	Fine	If Paid in 10 days
Overnight parking	\$50.00	\$25.00
Failure to display valid parking permit	-50.00	-25.00
Failure to pay daily fee	-50.00	-25.00
Parking in fire lane	-50.00	-25.00

#### Section Three – Codification

The title, chapter(s) and section(s) adopted by this ordinance shall be numbered and placed in an appropriate title, chapter(s), and section(s) when and during the codification of the Roselle Municipal Code.

#### Section Four - Conflict Clause

That all ordinances, parts of ordinances, resolutions, parts of resolutions or board actions in conflict with the terms of this ordinance shall be repealed to the extent of said conflict.

#### Section Five - Passage Clause

That this ordinance shall take full force and effect from and after its passage, approval and publication as provided by law.

#### Section Six - Constitutionality Clause

Any part or parts of this ordinance declared by a court of law to be invalid or unconstitutional shall not affect the validity of the remaining provisions of this ordinance or the Roselle Municipal Code.

#### Section Seven - Publication

This ordinance shall be published in book or pamphlet form as provided by the Illinois Municipal Code.

**Section Eight - Recording**

This ordinance shall be entered into the minutes and upon the journals of the Board of Trustees of the Village of Roselle.

**DECIDED** pursuant to a Roll Call Vote:

	YES	NO	ABSENT	ABSTAIN
Bruce Berkshire	✓			
Wayne D. Domke	✓			
Cheryl Lenisa	✓			
Tom Della Penna	✓			
Tom Piorkowski	✓			
Lee Trejo	✓			
David Pileski (if necessary)				
TOTAL	6			

**PASSED AND APPROVED** by the Village of Roselle Board of Trustees on the 12th day of December, 2022:

---

David Pileski  
Mayor

ATTEST:

---

Amanda Hausman  
Village Clerk